FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000/ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION REGULATIONS 2004 
Your request for information has now been considered and the Council’s response to your questions is shown below.

You asked:
1. How much money has been spent on Independent Care Act Advocacy (ICAA) annually, for the past four financial years (namely from 6 April 2020 to 5 April 2024)? 

The amount spent on ICAA annually by Leicester City Council 

2020-2021 -  £73,433,00

2021-2022 -  £64,043.67
2022-2023 -  £64,043.67

2023-2024 -  £61,568.29 – please note the final amount is yet to be confirmed with partners.


2. How many ICAA referrals have been made annually, for the past four financial years (namely from 6 April 2020 to 5 April 2024)? 

3. How many needs assessments have been conducted annually under s9 Care Act 2014, for the past four financial years (namely from 6 April 2020 to 5 April 2024)? 

4. How many of those needs assessments considered the need for ICAA, for the past four financial years (namely from 6 April 2020 to 5 April 2024)? S

5. Of those needs assessments that considered the need for ICAA, how many ICAA referrals were made under s67 Care Act 2014 for the past four financial years (namely from 6 April 2020 to 5 April 2024)? 

Please see attached spreadsheet for questions 2 to 5.

6. Please provide details of which organisation you have commissioned to provided ICAA for the past four financial years (namely from 6 April 2020 to 5 April 2024)? 
Age UK.


7. What was the financial envelope available when the ICAA contract last went out to tender and what was the figure of the successful bid?

The ICAA last went out to tender as a joint integrated Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Advocacy service not a separate ICAA service. This included merging all the Advocacy service contracts under one contract and one tender with an overall total budget which was not separated for the ICAA only.

The financial envelope set for the joint integrated Advocacy Services contract as published in September 2023 was £491,563 for the first year of the contract. 

The figure of the successful bid was £445,810.

8. Please provide a copy of the service/product specification given to all bidders for your ICAA funding when it was last advertised. 
See attached document.

9. Please provide a copy of the assessment tool or guide currently used for assessing whether an adult meets the eligibility criteria for ICAA. 
The provider uses the assessment eligibility criteria in the service specification which is based on the Care Act guidance.  Included in the service specification.

Eligibility criteria

8.1 Eligibility for support from the Independent Care Act Advocacy Service will be defined by the criteria established in the Care Act 2014, and any subsequent revisions or case law. Eligibility decisions will be based on the statutory duty to provide independent advocacy as outlined in the Care Act.

8.2 Local Authorities have a duty to involve people in the decisions made about them and their care and support. Involvement requires the local authority to help people to understand how they can be involved, contribute, take part, or lead and direct the process. Local authorities are required to involve people, no matter how complex their needs, to help them express their wishes and feelings, to support them weigh up options, and to make their own decisions. 

8.3 If a person is judged as having substantial difficulty when interacting with the local authority and there is no appropriate individual to support and represent them then an independent advocate will be offered to facilitate their involvement.

8.4 The Care Act defines four areas where people may experience substantial difficulty:

a Understanding relevant information 

b Retaining information

c Using or weighing up the information

d Communicating views, wishes and feelings

8.5 The duty to provide independent advocacy applies in all settings, including, but not limited to, those people living in the community, in care homes and prisons.

8.6 The duty to provide independent advocacy applies to:

a Adults who appear to need care and support,

b Carers of adults and carers of children in transition,

c Children who are approaching the transition to adult care and support, when a child’s needs assessment is carried out, and/or when a young carer’s assessment is undertaken,

d The duty to provide independent advocacy applies if an eligible individual is required to take part in one of the following processes:

· Needs assessment 

· Carer’s assessment 

· The preparation of a care and support or support plan 

· Review of a care and support or support plan

· Child’s needs assessment 

· Child’s carer’s assessment 

· Young carer’s assessment 

a Safeguarding enquiry

b Safeguarding adult review

8.7 The final decision as to whether a person is eligible for statutory access to an independent advocate will be made by the local authority.

8.32 People who are not eligible for support from the Independent Advocacy Service or where advocacy is not considered the appropriate method of support, should be signposted to appropriate sources of support eg, Advice Services or community-based support.

You may re-use the information under an Open Government Licence.
